
 

 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
 
Date: Monday, 3 April 2023 
Time: 2.00 pm 
Venue: Council Chamber, County Hall, Dorchester, DT1 1XJ 
 

Members (Quorum 3)  
Jon Andrews, Les Fry and Emma Parker 
 
Chief Executive: Matt Prosser, County Hall, Dorchester, Dorset DT1 1XJ  
 
For more information about this agenda please contact Democratic Services  
Meeting Contact  01305 224202 elaine.tibble@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting, apart from any items listed in 
the exempt part of this agenda. 
 
For easy access to all the council’s committee agendas and minutes download the free 
public app called Modern.Gov for use on any iPad, Android, and Windows tablet.  Once 
downloaded select Dorset Council. 
 
 
 

Agenda 
 
Item  Pages 

 
1.   ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN AND STATEMENT FOR THE 

PROCEDURE OF THE MEETING 
 

1 - 4 

 To elect a Chairman for the meeting and the Chairman to present and 
explain the procedure for the meeting.  
 

 

2.   APOLOGIES 
 

 

 To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

 To disclose any pecuniary, other registrable or non-registrable interests 
as set out in the adopted Code of Conduct. In making their disclosure 
councillors are asked to state the agenda item, the nature of the 
interest and any action they propose to take as part of their declaration. 
If required, further advice should be sought from the Monitoring Officer 
in advance of the meeting. 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



 

 
4.   URGENT ITEMS 

 
 

 To consider any items of business which the Chairman has had prior 
notification and considers to be urgent pursuant to section 100B (4) b) 
of the Local Government Act 1972. The reason for the urgency shall be 
recorded in the minutes. 
 

 

5.   TEMPORARY EVENT NOTICE- CLOSET, WEYMOUTH 
 

5 - 32 

 A Temporary Event Notice has been served on the Council to extend 
the hours of the Closet in Weymouth. The Notice has been considered 
by the Police and Environmental Protection. Environmental Protection 
have served Objection Notice. A Licensing Sub-Committee must 
consider the Notice and the Objection Notice at a public hearing.  
 

 

6.   EXEMPT BUSINESS 
 

 

 To move the exclusion of the press and the public for the following item 
in view of the likely disclosure of exempt information within the 
meaning of paragraph 3 of schedule 12 A to the Local Government Act 
1972 (as amended).  
The public and the press will be asked to leave the meeting whilst the 
item of business is considered. 
 

 

 
 

Page 2



 
 
THE LICENSING ACT 2003 (HEARINGS) REGULATIONS 2005 

 
Rights of a Party 
 
1. A party has the right to attend the hearing and may be represented by any 

person.  
2. A party is entitled to give further information where the authority has asked 

for clarification. 
3. A party can question another party, and/or address the authority, with 

consent of the authority.   
 
Failure to Attend 
 
4. If the authority is informed a party does not wish to attend, the hearing may 

proceed in their absence.  
5. If a party has not indicated their attendance and fails to attend the hearing 

may be adjourned if considered in the public interest, or hold the hearing 
ensuring the party’s representation is considered.  

6. Where the authority adjourns the hearing it shall notify the parties of the 
date, time and place.  

 
Procedural Information 
 
7. At the start of the hearing, the authority shall explain the procedure which 

it proposes to follow and shall consider any request for permission for 
another person to appear at the hearing. 

8. A hearing shall take the form of a discussion led by the authority and 
cross-examination shall not be permitted unless the authority considers 
that it is required.  

9. The authority will allow the parties an equal maximum period of time in 
which to speak.  

10. The authority may require any person behaving disruptively to leave, and 
may refuse that person to return, but such a person may, before the end of 
the hearing, submit in writing information they would have been entitled to 
give orally had they not been required to leave. 

 
FOOTNOTE: 
 
In relation to all other matters governed by the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) 
Regulations 2005 any party or their representative may contact the Licensing 
Services at Dorset Council and they will be provided with a full copy of the 
regulations on request. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 
 
 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE PROCEDURE 
 
1. At the start of the meeting the Chairman will introduce: 

• the members of the sub-committee 

• the council officers present 

• the parties and their representatives 
 
2. The Chairman will then deal with any appropriate agenda items. 
 
3. The Licensing Officer will be asked to outline the details of the application,   

including details of any withdrawn representations.  
 
4. The applicant or their representative is then invited to present their case. 
 
5. Committee members will be invited to ask questions. 
 

  6. Where appropriate the Responsible Bodies e.g. representatives of Police, 
Fire Services, Environmental Services or Trading Standards will be invited 
to address the sub-committee on any relevant representations they may 
have. 

 
7. The Chairman may then allow an opportunity for questions. 
 
8. The Chairman will ask any person who has made representations, who 

have already expressed a wish to do so, to address the sub-committee.  
The sub-committee will have read all the papers before them, including 
any letters of representation.  Members of the public are asked to keep 
their comments concise and to the point. 

 
9. All parties will be given the opportunity to “sum up” their case. 
 
10. The Chairman will ask the Legal Advisor if all relevant points have been 

addressed before advising all parties present that the sub-committee will 
withdraw from the meeting to consider its decision in private.  The sub-
committee will be accompanied by the Democratic Services Officer and 
the Legal Advisor can be called upon to offer legal guidance. 

 
11. The Chairman will: 
 

• advise when the sub-committee’s decision will be confirmed in 
writing.  

• Inform those present of their right to appeal to the Magistrates’ Court. 
 

Page 4



 
NOTE 
 
The Chairman may vary this procedure, as circumstances require but will have 
regard to the rules of natural justice and the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) 
Regulations 2005. 
 
The meeting will take place in public.  However, the public can be excluded 
from all or part of the meeting where the sub-committee considers that the 
public interest in so doing outweighs the public interest in the meeting or that 
part of the meeting, taking place in public. 
 
Under no circumstances must the parties or their witnesses offer the sub-
committee information in the absence of the other parties. 
 
The Chairman and the Sub-Committee have discretion whether to allow new 
information or documents to be submitted and read at the meeting. 

 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing Sub-Committee 

3 April 2023 

Temporary Event Notice – Closet, Weymouth 
 

For Decision 

Portfolio Holder:  Cllr L Beddow, Culture, Communities and Customer Services
  
 
Local Councillor(s): Cllr J Orrell 

Executive Director: J Sellgren, Executive Director of Place  
     
Report Author: Kathryn Miller 
Title: Licensing Team Leader  
Tel: 01305 252214  
Email: kathryn.miller@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk 
 
Report Status:  Public 

 
Brief Summary:  A Temporary Event Notice has been served on the Council to extend the 

hours of the Closet in Weymouth. The Notice has been considered by the Police and 

Environmental Protection. Environmental Protection have served Objection Notice. A 

Licensing Sub-Committee must consider the Notice and the Objection Notice at a public 

hearing.  

 
Recommendation:  The Sub-Committee considers the Temporary Event Notice in the 
light of the objection notice made by Environment Protection and any oral evidence and 
resolves to take such steps as it considers appropriate and proportionate for the promotion 
of the licensing objectives of; 
 

a) The prevention of crime and disorder 
b) The prevention of public nuisance 
c) Public safety 
d) The protection of children from harm 

 

 
Reason for Recommendation:   The Sub-Committee must consider the oral 
representations and information given at the hearing before reaching a decision.             
 

  

Page 7

Agenda Item 6

https://apps.geowessex.com/stats/


1. Details of the TEN 

1.1 A Temporary Event Notice (TEN) has been served on the Licensing Authority by Mr 
Jamie Craig for The Closet 38A Maiden Street, Weymouth. 

 
1.2 The TEN covers a period from 0300 hours until 0400 hours on Friday 7, Saturday 8 

April and Sunday 9 April. The Notice covers the sale of alcohol, regulated 
entertainment and late-night refreshment and is for 300 attendees.  Although the 
box “are you giving a late temporary event notice” is ticked, the TEN is not a late 
temporary event notice.  The TEN is attached at Appendix 1. 

 
1.3 The Objection Notice has been correctly served by the Environmental Protection 

within the statutory three working days consultation period.  The Objection Notice is 
attached at Appendix 2. 
 

1.4 The TEN is to extend the operational hours, as under condition 29 of the Closet’s 
premises licence, the bar side must have a cooling down period from 0200 hours 
with the area to close at 0300 hours.  Under the TEN, Mr Craig would like to have 
the cooling down period to start at 0300 hours with the area to close at 0400 hours.  
The timings on the TEN form, 0300 hours to 0500 hours, refer to the night club 
area, which can run until 0500 hours (Monday to Sunday) and 0600 hours on bank 
holiday weekends, Mr Craig does not need this area and does not fall under this 
Temporary Event Notice.  A copy of their current licence is at Appendix 3. 
 

 
2. Considerations 

 
2.1 Paragraph 7.28 of the Section 182 Guidance sets how the Authority should decide 

what actions are appropriate. 
 

If the licensing authority receives an objection notice from the police or EHA that 

is not withdrawn, it must (in the case of a standard TEN only) hold a hearing to 

consider the objection unless all parties agree that this is unnecessary. The 

licensing committee may decide to allow the licensable activities to go ahead as 

stated in the notice. If the notice is in connection with licensable activities at 

licensed premises, the licensing authority may also impose one or more of the 

existing licence conditions on the TEN (insofar as such conditions are not 

inconsistent with the event) if it considers that this is appropriate for the 

promotion of the licensing objectives. If the authority decides to impose 

conditions, it must give notice to the premises user which includes a statement 

of conditions (a “notice (statement of conditions)”) and provide a copy to each 

relevant party. Alternatively, it can decide that the event would undermine the 

licensing objectives and should not take place. In this case, the licensing 

authority must give a counter notice.  

3.2.  The steps that the Sub-Committee may take are:  

Page 8



a) Issue a counter notice for the event which will not allow it to occur. 
b) Not to issue a counter notice and allow the event as applied for. 
c) Attach one or more of the conditions of the premises licence to the TEN. 

 

 

3. Financial Implications 

An applicant has the right to appeal the decision of the Licensing Sub Committee to 

the Magistrate’s Court if the decision is to refuse the application. 

4. Climate Implications 

None 

5. Well-being and Health Implications  

None 

6. Other Implications 

None 

7. Risk Assessment 

HAVING CONSIDERED: the risks associated with this decision; the level of risk has 

been identified as: 

Current Risk: High 

Residual Risk: High 

 

8. Equalities Impact Assessment 

 

Not applicable 

9. Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Temporary Event Notice 
Appendix 2 – Objection Notice 
Appendix 3 – Current premises licence 
 

10. Background Papers 

Licensing Act 2003   
Home Office Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003   
Dorset Council Statement of Licensing Policy 2021 

Page 9

https://dorsetcc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/kate_critchel_dorsetcouncil_gov_uk/Documents/New%20folder%20(2)/There#Equalities
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/part/3/crossheading/variation-of-licences
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf
https://www.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/documents/35024/391427/Dorset+Council+Statement+of+Licensing+Policy+Final++01-02-2021.pdf/799cf2e1-4af1-b9e8-4858-1f1b102554d5


This page is intentionally left blank



                                  

Temporary Event Notice Application Form. 
 

Before completing this notice, please read the guidance notes at the end of the notice.  If you are 
completing this notice by hand, please write legibly in block capitals.  In all cases, ensure that your 
answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink or typed.  Use additional sheets if necessary.  
You should keep a copy of the completed notice for your records.  You must send at least one copy of 
this notice to the licensing authority and additional copies must be sent to the chief officer of police 
and the local authority exercising environmental health functions for the area in which the premises 
are situated.  The licensing authority will give to you written acknowledgement of the receipt of the 
notice. 
 
I, the proposed premises user, hereby give notice under section 100 of the Licensing Act 2003 of my 
proposal to carry on a temporary activity at the premises described below. 
 

1. The personal details of premises user (Please read note 1) 

1. Your name  
Title Mr    Mrs  Miss   Ms  Other (please state)      

Surname Crage 

Forenames Jamie  

2. Previous names (Please enter details of any previous names or maiden names, if 
applicable. Please continue on a separate sheet if necessary)  
Title Mr   Mrs  Miss   Ms   Other (please state)      

Surname  

Forenames  

3. Your date of birth               Day: Month:  Year 

4. Your place of birth           

5. National Insurance Number          

6. Your current address (We will use this address to correspond with you unless you 
complete the separate correspondence box below) 
 

 

Post town  Postcode

7. Other contact details 
Telephone numbers 
Daytime 
 
Evening (optional) 
 
Mobile (optional) 

 
      
 
      
 

Fax number (optional)        

E-Mail address 
(if available)  

 

  

Page 11

kathryn.miller
Typewriter
Appendix 1



8. Alternative address for correspondence (If you complete the details below, we will use this 
address to correspond with you) 
 
      
 
 
 

Post town       Postcode       

9. Alternative contact details (if applicable) 
Telephone numbers: 
Daytime 
 
Evening (optional) 
 
Mobile (optional) 

 
      
 
      
 
      

Fax number (optional)       
E-Mail address 
(if available)  

      

 
2. The premises   
Please give the address of the premises where you intend to carry on the licensable activities 
or, if it has no address, give a detailed description (including the Ordnance Survey 
references) 
(Please read note 2) 
The Closet  
38a Maiden street  
Wemouth  
Dorset  
DT48BA 
 
 
 
Does a premises licence or club premises certificate have effect in relation to the premises 
(or any part of the premises)?  If so, please enter the licence or certificate number below.  

Premises licence number WPPL0407 

Club premises certificate number    

If you intend to use only part of the premises at this address or intend to restrict the area to 
which this notice applies, please give a description and details below.  (Please read note 3) 

 
      
 
 
 
 
Please describe the nature of the premises below. (Please read note 4) 

 
Bar and Nightclub  
 
 
 
Please describe the nature of the event below. (Please read note 5) 

 
To amend condition 29 of the licence. Extended the operational hours of bar side from soft 
close at  02:00 and close at 03:00  - soft close from 03:00 – 04:00 

 

Page 12



 
3. The licensable activities 

Please state the licensable activities that you intend to carry on at the premises (please tick 
all licensable activities you intend to carry on). (Please read note 6) 

The sale by retail of alcohol   

The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a 
member of the club 

 

The provision of regulated entertainment    

The provision of late night refreshment    

Are you giving a late temporary event notice? (Please read note 7)   

Please state the dates on which you intend to use these premises for 
licensable activities.  (Please read note 8) 

 

6th, 7th 8th 9th April 2023  

Please state the times during the event period that you propose to carry on licensable 
activities (please give times in 24 hour clock). (Please read note 9) 

The event would start on Thursday 6th April   however the Tens applies to the hours of the 
7th 8th 9th of April from  
 
03:00-05:00 
 
 
Please state the maximum number of people at any one time that you intend 
to allow to be present at the premises during the times when you intend to 
carry on licensable activities, including any staff, organisers or 
performers.  (Please read note 10) 

300 

If the licensable activities will include the supply 
of alcohol, please state whether the supplies will 
be for consumption on or off the premises, or 
both (please tick as appropriate). (Please read 
note 11) 
 
 

On the premises only 
 

  

Off the premises only 
 

 

Both 
 

 

Please state if the licensable activities will include the provision of relevant entertainment. If 
so please state the times during the event period that you propose to provide relevant 
entertainment.  
(please read note 12)  
 
 

 
 
  

Page 13



 
4. Personal licence holders  (Please read note 13) 

Do you currently hold a valid personal licence? 
(Please tick) 

Yes 
  

No 
 

If “Yes” please provide the details of your personal licence below. 

Issuing licensing authority Weymouth & Portland  

 
Licence number 
 
Date of issue 
 
Date of expiry 
 
Any further relevant details 

 
WPPA0417 
 
14 July 2016 
 
      
 
      
 

 
 
5.  Previous temporary event notices you have given  (Please read note 14 and tick the 
boxes that apply to you) 
Have you previously given a temporary event notice in respect of any 
premises for events falling in the same calendar year as the event for which 
you are now giving this temporary event notice? 
 

Yes 
 

No 
  

If answering yes, please state the number of temporary event notices 
(including the number of late temporary event notices, if any) you have given 
for events in that same calendar year  

   

Have you already given a temporary event notice for the same premises in 
which the event period: 
a) ends 24 hours or less before; or 
b) begins 24 hours or less after 
the event period proposed in this notice? 
 

Yes 
 

No 
  
 

 
 
6.   Associates and business colleagues (Please read note 15 and tick the boxes that apply 
to you) 
Has any associate of yours given a temporary event notice for an event in 
the same calendar year as the event for which you are now giving a 
temporary event notice? 
 

Yes 
 

No 
  

If answering yes, please state the total number of temporary event notices 
(including the number of late temporary event notices, if any) your 
associate(s) have given for events in the same calendar year. 
 

  

Has any associate of yours already given a temporary event notice for the 
same premises in which the event period: 
a) ends 24 hours or less before; or 
b) begins 24 hours or less after 
the event period proposed in this notice? 
 

Yes 
 

No 
  

  

Page 14



Has any person with whom you are in business carrying on licensable 
activities given a temporary event notice for an event in the same calendar 
year as the event for which you are now giving a temporary event notice?  

Yes 
 

No
  

If answering yes, please state the total number of temporary event notices 
(including the number of late temporary event notices, if any) your business 
colleague(s) have given for events in the same calendar year. 

   

Has any person with whom you are in business carrying on licensable 
activities already given a temporary event notice for the same premises in 
which the event period: 
a) ends 24 hours or less before; or 
b) begins 24 hours or less after 
the event period proposed in this notice? 
 

Yes 
 

No 
  

 
 

7. Checklist  (Please read note 16) 
I have: (Please tick the appropriate boxes)                                                                        
Sent at least one copy of this notice to the licensing authority for the area in which 
the premises are situated 

 

Sent a copy of this notice to the chief officer of police for the area in which the 
premises are situated 

 

Sent a copy of this notice to the local authority exercising environmental health 
functions for the area in which the premises are situated 

  

If the premises are situated in one or more licensing authority areas, sent at least 
one copy of this notice to each additional licensing authority 

 

If the premises are situated in one or more police areas, sent a copy of this notice 
to each additional chief officer of police 

 

If the premises are situated in one or more local authority areas, sent a copy of this 
notice to each additional local authority exercising environmental health functions 

  

Made or enclosed payment of the fee for the application   
 

Signed the declaration in Section 9 below   
 

 
 
8.  Condition  (Please read note 17) 
It is a condition of this temporary event notice that where the relevant licensable activities 
described in Section 3 above include the supply of alcohol that all such supplies are made 
by or under the authority of the premises user. 
 

 
  

Page 15



9. Declarations  (Please read note 18) 

The information contained in this form is correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. 
 
I understand that it is an offence: 
(i) to knowingly or recklessly make a false statement in or in connection with this temporary 
event notice and that a person is liable on summary conviction for such an offence to a fine 
not exceeding level 5 on the standard scale; and 
(ii) to permit an unauthorised licensable activity to be carried on at any place and that a 
person is liable on summary conviction for any such offence to a fine not exceeding 
£20,000, or to imprisonment for a term not exceeding six months, or to both. 
 
Signature 
 

Jamie Crage  
 
 

Date 
 

20/03/23 

Name of 
Person 
signing 

Jamie Crage  

 
 
For completion by the licensing authority 
 
10.  Acknowledgement   (Please read note 19) 
 
I acknowledge receipt of this temporary event notice. 
 
Signature  

 
 
On behalf of the licensing authority 

Date       

Name of 
Officer signing 

                      

 
The council has a duty to protect the public funds it administers, and to do this may use the information you have provided on 
this form to prevent and detect fraud. It may also share this information with other bodies responsible for auditing or 
administering public funds for these purposes.  Where appropriate, and as part of its commitment to improving customer 
service, the council may also share the information provided on this form with other council services.  For more information, see 
http://www.dorsetforyou.com/fraud or contact Finance Manager on 1305 252292.

Page 16



NOTES 
 
General 
 
In these notes, a person who gives a temporary event notice is called a “premises user”. 
  
The police and local authority exercising environmental health functions may intervene on the 
grounds of any of the four licensing objectives (the prevention of crime and disorder, public safety, the 
prevention of public nuisance, and the protection of children from harm) to prevent the occurrence of 
an event at which permitted temporary activities are to take place or to agree a modification of the 
arrangements for such an event.  However, the licensing authority will intervene of its own volition in 
the cases described below. 
 
First, it will issue a counter notice if there is an objection to a late temporary event notice (see note 7 
below). 
 
Secondly, it may issue a notice in relation to its decision to impose conditions on a temporary event 
notice (see note 2 below). 
 
Thirdly, it will issue a counter notice if the first, second, third and fifth of the limits set out below would 
be exceeded.  If any of the limits below are breached or if a counter notice has been issued, any 
licensable activities taking place would be unauthorised and the premises user would be liable to 
prosecution. The limitations apply to: 
 

 the number of times a person may give a temporary event notice (50 times per year for a 
personal licence holder and 5 times per year for other people); 

 
 the number of times a person may give a late temporary event notice (10 times per year for a 

personal licence holder and 2 times per year for other people); 
 

 the number of times a temporary event notice may be given in respect of any particular 
premises (15 times in a calendar year); 

 
 the length of time a temporary event may last for these purposes (168 hours or 7 days); 

 
 the maximum aggregate duration of the periods covered by temporary event notices at any 

individual premises (21 days per calendar year); and 
 

 the scale of the event in terms of the maximum number of people attending at any one time (a 
maximum of 499). 

 
For the purposes of determining the overall limits of 50 temporary event notices per personal licence 
holder (in a calendar year) and of 5 for a non-personal licence holder (in a calendar year), temporary 
event notices given by an associate or a person who is in business with a premises user (and that 
business involves carrying on licensable activities) count towards those totals.  The limits applying to 
late temporary event notices are included within the overall limits applying to the total number of 
temporary event notices. Note 15 below sets out the definition of an “associate”. 
 
When permitted temporary activities take place, a premises user must ensure that either: 
 

 a copy of the temporary event notice is prominently displayed at the premises; or 
 

 the temporary event notice is kept at the premises either in his own custody or in the custody 
of a person present and working at the premises and whom he has nominated for that 
purpose. 

 
Where the temporary event notice is in the custody of a nominated person, a notice specifying that 
fact and the position held by that person must be displayed prominently at the premises. 
 
Where the temporary event notice or a notice specifying the nominated person is not displayed, a 
constable or an authorised person (for example, a licensing officer, fire officer or environmental health 
officer) may require the premises user to produce the temporary event notice for examination. 

Page 17



Similarly, where the nominated person has the temporary event notice in his custody, a constable or 
authorised person may require that person to produce it for examination. Failure to produce the 
temporary event notice without reasonable excuse would be an offence. 
 
It should also be noted that the following, among other things, are offences under the Licensing Act 
2003: 
 

 the sale or supply of alcohol to children under 18 years of age (maximum fine on conviction is 
an unlimited fine); 

 
 allowing the sale of alcohol to children under 18 (maximum fine on conviction is an unlimited 

fine); 
 

 knowingly allowing the consumption of alcohol on the premises by a person aged under 18 
(maximum fine on conviction is an unlimited fine); 

 
 allowing disorderly behaviour on the premises (maximum fine on conviction is a fine not 

exceeding level 3 on the standard scale, currently £1,000); 
 

 the sale of alcohol to a person who is drunk (maximum fine on conviction is a fine not 
exceeding level 3 on the standard scale, currently £1,000); 

 
 obtaining alcohol for a person who is drunk (maximum fine on conviction is a fine not 

exceeding level 3 on the standard scale, currently £1,000); 
 

 knowingly allowing a person aged under 18 to make any sale or supply of alcohol unless the 
sale or supply has been specifically approved by the premises user or any individual aged 18 
or over who has been authorised for this purpose by the premises user (maximum fine on 
conviction is a fine not exceeding level 1 on the standard scale, currently £200); and 

 
 knowingly keeping or allowing to be kept on the premises any smuggled goods which have 

been imported without payment of duty or which have otherwise been unlawfully imported 
(maximum fine on conviction is a fine not exceeding level 3 on the standard scale, currently 
£1,000). 

 
In addition, where the premises are to be used primarily or exclusively for the sale or supply of alcohol 
for consumption on the premises, it is an offence to allow children under 16 to be present when the 
premises are open for that purpose unless they are accompanied by an adult.  In the case of any 
premises at which sales or supplies of alcohol are taking place at all, it is an offence for a child under 
16 to be present there between the hours of midnight and 5am unless accompanied by an adult.  In 
both instances, the penalty on conviction is a fine not exceeding level 3 on the standard scale, 
currently £1,000. 
 
Note 1 
A temporary event notice may only be given by an individual and not, for example, by an organisation 
or club or business.  The individual giving the notice is the proposed “premises user”.  Within 
businesses, clubs or organisations, one individual will therefore need to be identified as the proposed 
premises user. 
 
If you include an e-mail address in section 1(7) or 1(9), the licensing authority may send to this the 
acknowledgement of receipt of your notice or any notice or counter notice it is required to give under 
sections 104A, 106A or 107 of the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
Note 2 
For the purposes of the Licensing Act 2003, “premises” means any place.  Premises will therefore not 
always be a building with a formal address and postcode.  Premises can include, for example, public 
parks, recreation grounds and private land. 
 
If a premises licence or club premises certificate has effect in relation to the premises (or any part of 
the premises) which you want to use to carry on licensable activities, it is possible that any conditions 
which apply to the licence or certificate may be imposed on the temporary event notice if certain pre-

Page 18



conditions are met.  These pre-conditions are that the police or the local authority exercising 
environmental health functions object to the notice and the licensing authority decides: 
 

 not to give a counter notice under section 105 of the Licensing Act 2003; 
 the conditions apply to the licence or certificate; and 
 the imposition of the conditions on the notice would not be inconsistent with the carrying on of 

the licensable activities under the notice. 
 
Note 3 
A temporary event notice can be given for part of a building, such as a single room or a plot within a 
larger area of land.  You should provide a clear description of the area in which you propose to carry 
on licensable activities.  This is important as any licensable activities conducted outside the area of 
the premises protected by the authority of this temporary event notice would be unlawful and could 
lead to prosecution. 
 
In addition, when holding the proposed event, the premises user would need to be able to restrict the 
number of people on the premises at any one time when licensable activities are taking place to less 
than 500.  If more than 499 are on the premises when licensable activities are being carried on, the 
licensable activities would be unlawful and the premises user would be liable to prosecution.  The 
maximum figure of 499 includes, for example, staff, organisers, stewards and performers. 
 
Note 4 
A description of the nature of the premises assists the chief officer of police and local authority 
exercising environmental health functions in deciding if any issues relating to the licensing objectives 
are likely to arise.  You should state clearly that the premises to be used are, for example, a public 
house, a restaurant, an open field, a village hall or a beer tent. 
 
Note 5 
A description of the nature of the event similarly assists the chief officer of police and local authority 
exercising environmental health functions in making a decision as to whether or not to make an 
objection.  You should state clearly that the event taking place at the premises would be, for example, 
a wedding with a pay bar, the supply of beer at a particular farmers’ market, a discotheque, the 
performance of a string quartet, a folk group or a rock band. 
 
Note 6 
The licensable activities are: 
 

 the sale by retail of alcohol; 
 the supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a member of a club; 
 the provision of regulated entertainment; and 
 the provision of late night refreshment. 

 
Please refer to Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003 for fuller details of the definitions and 
exemptions relating to regulated entertainment and late night refreshment. 
 
Regulated entertainment, subject to specified conditions and exemptions, includes: 
 
(a) a performance of a play; 
(b) an exhibition of a film; 
(c) an indoor sporting event; 
(d) a boxing or wrestling entertainment; 
(e) a performance of live music; 
(f) any playing of recorded music; 
(g) a performance of dance; and 
(h) entertainment of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g). 
 
If you are uncertain whether or not the activities that you propose are licensable, you should contact 
your licensing authority for further advice. 

Page 19



Note 7 
Late notices can be given no later than 5 working days but no earlier than 9 working days before the 
event in relation to which the notice is given.  A late notice given later than 5 working days before the 
event to which it relates will be returned as void and the activities described in it will not be authorised. 
 
The number of late notices that can be given in any one calendar year is limited to 10 for personal 
licence holders and 2 for non-personal licence holders.  These count towards the total number of 
temporary event notices (i.e. 50 temporary event notices per year for personal licence holders and 5 
temporary event notices for non-personal licence holders). 
 
If there is an objection from either the police or local authority exercising environmental health 
functions, the event will not go ahead and a counter notice will be issued. 
 
Note 8 
The maximum period for using premises for licensable activities under the authority of a temporary 
event notice is 168 hours or seven days. 
 
Note 9 
You should state here the times during the event period, for example 48 hours, when you intend to 
carry on licensable activities.  For example, you may not intend to carry on licensable activities 
throughout the entire 48 hour event period, and may intend to sell alcohol between 8.00 hrs and 23.00 
hrs on each of the two days. 
 
Note 10 
No more than 499 may be on the premises for a temporary event at any one time when licensable 
activities are being carried on.  If you intend to have more than 499 attending the event, you should 
obtain a premises licence for the event. Your licensing authority should be able to advise you.  The 
maximum figure of 499 includes not only the audience, spectators or consumers but also, for 
example, staff, organisers, stewards and performers who will be present on the premises. 
 
Note 11 
If you indicate that alcohol will be supplied only for consumption on the premises, you would be 
required to ensure that no person leaves the premises with alcohol supplied there.  If such a supply 
takes place, the premises user may be liable to prosecution for carrying on an unauthorised 
licensable activity.  Similarly, if the premises user gives notice that only supplies of alcohol for 
consumption off the premises will take place, he/she must ensure that alcohol supplied is not 
consumed on the premises.  The premises user is free to give notice that he/she intends to carry on 
both types of supplies.  For this purpose, the supply of alcohol includes both of the first two licensable 
activities listed in note 6 above. 
 
Note 12  
Relevant entertainment is defined in the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (“the 
1982 Act”) as any live performance or any live display of nudity which is of such a nature that, 
ignoring financial gain, it must reasonably be assumed to be provided solely or principally for the 
purpose of sexually stimulating any member of the audience (whether by verbal or other means). 
Relevant entertainment therefore includes, but is not limited to, lap dancing and pole dancing. 
 
The 1982 Act requires premises which provide relevant entertainment to be licensed under that Act 
for this purpose. Premises at which there have not been more than eleven occasions on which such 
entertainment has been provided within a period of 12 months, no such occasion has lasted for more 
than 24 hours and there has been a period of at least one month between each such occasion are 
exempt from the requirement to obtain a licence under the 1982 Act. Such premises are likely instead 
to require an authorisation under the Licensing Act 2003 to be used for such activities as these are a 
licensable activity (the provision of regulated entertainment – see note 6 above). A temporary event 
notice may be given for this purpose. 
 
Note 13 
The holder of a valid personal licence issued under the Licensing Act 2003 may give up to 50 
temporary event notices in any calendar year subject to the other limitations in the 2003 Act.  A 
proposed premises user who holds such a licence should give the details requested. 

Page 20



Note 14 
As stated under Note 13, a personal licence holder (issued under the Licensing Act 2003) may give 
up to 50 temporary event notices (including 10 late notices) in any calendar year.  An individual who 
does not hold a personal licence may only give 5 temporary event notices (including 2 late notices) in 
England and Wales in any calendar year.  A calendar year is the period between 1st January to 31st 
December inclusive in any year. 
 
If an event straddles two calendar years, it will count against the limits on temporary event notices (12 
for each premises, 21 days for each premises, 50 per personal licence holder and 5 for non-holders) 
for each year.  However, only one notice needs to be given. 
 
For the purposes of determining the overall limits of 50 temporary event notices per personal licence 
holder (in a calendar year) and of 5 for a non-personal licence holder (in a calendar year), temporary 
event notices given by an associate or a person who is in business with a premises user (and that 
business involves carrying on licensable activities) count towards those totals.  Note 15 below sets 
out the definition of an “associate”. 
 
If a temporary event notice has been given for the same premises, by the same premises user, and 
would have effect within 24 hours before the start of the event period under the current proposal or 
within 24 hours after the end of that period, the temporary event notice given would be void and any 
licensable activities carried on under it would therefore be unlicensed. 
 
For the purposes of determining whether or not the required gap of 24 hours is upheld, temporary 
event notices given by an associate or a person who is in business with a premises user (and that 
business involves carrying on licensable activities) count as if they had been given by the premises 
user.  Note 15 below sets out the definition of an “associate”. 
 
Note 15 
An “associate” of the proposed premises user is: 
 
a. the spouse or civil partner of that person; 
b. a child, parent, grandchild, grandparent, brother or sister of that person; 
c. an agent or employee of that person; or 
d. the spouse or civil partner of a person within (b) or (c). 
 
For these purposes, a person living with another as that person’s husband or wife is to be treated as 
that person’s spouse. 
 
Note 16 
It is a requirement that you send at least one copy of this notice to the licensing authority at least ten 
working days (or five working days for a late notice) before the commencement of the proposed 
licensable activities. The authority will give you written acknowledgement of the receipt of the notice.  
This will be important proof that you gave the notice and when you gave it for the purposes of the Act.  
Some premises may be situated in two licensing authority areas, for example, where a building or 
field straddles the local authority boundary.  Where this is the case, at least one copy of the notice 
must be sent to each of the licensing authorities identified, together with the appropriate fee in each 
case.  In such circumstances, you will receive acknowledgements from all the relevant licensing 
authorities. 
 
One copy must be sent to each of the chief officer of police and the local authority exercising 
environmental health functions for the area in which the premises is situated at least ten working days 
for a standard notice (or five working days for a late notice) before the commencement of the 
proposed licensable activities.  Where the premises are situated in two police areas or environmental 
health areas, a further copy will need to be sent to the further police force and local authority 
exercising environmental health functions. 
 
Note 17 
Under the Licensing Act 2003, all temporary event notices are given subject to a mandatory condition 
requiring that where the licensable activities involve the supply of alcohol, all such supplies must be 
made by or under the authority of the named premises user.  If there is a breach of this condition, the 
premises user and the individual making the supply in question would be liable to prosecution.  For 
this purpose, the supply of alcohol includes both of the first two licensable activities listed in note 6 
above. 

Page 21



 
Note 18 
It is an offence knowingly or recklessly to make a false statement in, or in connection with, a 
temporary event notice.  (A person is to be treated as making a false statement if he produces, 
furnishes, signs or otherwise makes use of a document that contains a false statement.)  To do so 
could result in prosecution and a fine not exceeding level 5 on the standard scale. 
 
Note 19 
You should not complete section 10 of the notice, which is for use by the licensing authority.  It may 
complete this section as one means of giving you written acknowledgement of its receipt of the notice. 
 

EXPLANATORY NOTE 
(This note is not part of these Regulations) 

 
These Regulations substitute the form in the Schedule to these Regulations for the form in Schedule 
1 to the Licensing Act 2003 (Permitted Temporary Activities) (Notices) Regulations 2005 (prescribed 
form of temporary event notice).  The form of temporary event notice now refers to the maximum 
number of temporary events permitted per year as 15 rather than 12 in order to reflect a change in the 
law brought about by section 68 of the Deregulation Act 2015 (c.20).   
 
A full impact assessment has not been produced for this instrument as no or no significant impact on 
the private, voluntary or public sectors is foreseen. 

Page 22



1

Kathryn Miller

Subject: FW: TEN - Closet April 2023

 
 

From: Nicola Robinson  
Sent: 23 March 2023 15:18 
To: Licensing
Cc: Police - Police Licensing
Subject: FW: TEN - Closet April 2023 
 
Dear Licensing, 
 
I have reviewed this TEN application for the Closet, 38A Maiden Street, Weymouth, DT4 8BA for 6th-9th April 2023. I 
wish to object to this TEN under the objective of the Prevention of Public Nuisance under the Licensing Act 2003 as I 
would like to see the appropriate noise conditions listed on the Premises Licence extended to this TEN 6th-9th April 
2023. 
 
I wish to request the conditions are considered to proactively and preventatively protect the objective. I understand 
this is the only method with which to have this occur and it cannot just be ‘agreed’ between ourselves and the 
applicant. 
 
Also I note that the application at section 2 states the applicant would wish to extend the operational hours of ‘bar 
side’ from soft close at  02:00 and close at 03:00  - soft close from 03:00 – 04:00,  however at section 3 it says the 
TEN applies to the hours of 03:00-05:00 and would also seek clarification of this point.  
 
Kind regards 
 
 
Nicola Robinson  

 

Technical Officer  

Environmental Health 

Dorset Council 

 

   

 

From: Licensing  
Sent: 21 March 2023 11:18 
To: .Licensing ENV Health
Subject: TEN - Closet April 2023 
 
Please find attached a TEN 
 
If you have any comments can I have them by the 24th March 
 
Please note the TEN is for the below activity 

Page 23

kathryn.miller_1
Typewriter
Appendix 2



2

 
To amend condition 29 of the licence. Extended the operational hours of bar side from soft close at 02:00 and 
close at 03:00 - soft close from 03:00 – 04:00 
 
Laura Goff  

 

Licensing Officer 

Place Services  

Dorset Council 

 

   

 

Page 24



Licensing Team
Place Services
Dorset Council

County Hall
Dorchester

DT1 1XJ
licensing@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence WPPL0407

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

CLOSET
38A MAIDEN STREET, WEYMOUTH, DORSET.

WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES

Not applicable

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE

an exhibition of a film-

an indoor sporting event-

a performance of live music-

any playing of recorded music-

a performance of dance-

entertainment of a similar description to that falling within a performance of live music, any playing of recorded music or a
performance of dance

-

provision of late night refreshment-

the supply of alcohol-

THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES

Activity (and Area if applicable) Description Time From Time To

B.  Exhibition of films (Indoors)
Sunday to Thursday 9:00am 5:00am
Friday & Saturday 9:00am 5:00am
Bank Holiday Weekends 9:00am 6:00am
New Years Eve 9:00am 6:00am

C.  Indoor sporting event
Sunday to Thursday 9:00am 5:00am
Friday & Saturday 9:00am 5:00am
Bank Holiday Weekends 9:00am 6:00am
New Years Eve 9:00am 6:00am

E.  Performance of live music (Indoors)
Sunday to Thursday 9:00am 5:00am
Friday & Saturday 9:00am 5:00am
Bank Holiday Weekends 9:00am 6:00am
New Years Eve 9:00am 6:00am

F.  Playing of recorded music (Indoors)
Sunday to Thursday 9:00am 4:00am
Friday & Saturday 9:00am 4:00am
Bank Holiday Weekends 9:00am 5:00am
New Years Eve 9:00am 5:00am

G.  Performance of dance (Indoors)
Sunday to Thursday 9:00am 5:00am
Friday & Saturday 9:00am 5:00am
Bank Holiday Weekends 9:00am 6:00am
New Years Eve 9:00am 6:00am

Part 1 - Premises Details

Printed by LalPac on 27 Mar 2023 at 14:56 Page 1 of 10WPPL0407/55505Page 25

kathryn.miller_2
Typewriter
Appendix 3



Licensing Team
Place Services
Dorset Council

County Hall
Dorchester

DT1 1XJ
licensing@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence WPPL0407
THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES  continued ...

Activity (and Area if applicable) Description Time From Time To

H.  Entertainment of a similar description to that falling within E, F, or G (Indoors)
Sunday to Thursday 9:00am 5:00am
Friday & Saturday 9:00am 5:00am
Bank Holiday Weekends 9:00am 6:00am
New Years Eve 9:00am 6:00am

I. Late night refreshment (Indoors)
Sunday to Thursday 9:00am 5:00am
Friday & Saturday 9:00am 5:00am
Bank Holiday Weekends 9:00am 6:00am
New Years Eve 9:00am 6:00am

J. Supply of alcohol for consumption ON and OFF the premises
Sunday to Thursday 9:00am 5:00am
Friday & Saturday 9:00am 5:00am
Bank Holiday Weekends 9:00am 6:00am
New Years Eve 9:00am 6:00am

THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES

Description Time From Time To

Sunday to Thursday 9:00am 5:00am
Friday & Saturday 9:00am 5:00am
Bank Holiday Weekends 9:00am 6:00am
New Years Eve 9:00am 6:00am

WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND / OR OFF SUPPLIES

- J. Supply of alcohol for consumption ON and OFF the premises

Part 2

NAME, (REGISTERED) ADDRESS, TELEPHONE NUMBER AND EMAIL (WHERE RELEVANT) OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE

Jamie Paul CRAGE

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER, FOR EXAMPLE COMPANY NUMBER, CHARITY NUMBER (WHERE APPLICABLE)

NAME, ADDRESS AND TELEPHONE NUMBER OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR OR MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE WHERE THE
PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Jamie Paul CRAGE

Printed by LalPac on 27 Mar 2023 at 14:56 Page 2 of 10WPPL0407/55505Page 26



Licensing Team
Place Services
Dorset Council

County Hall
Dorchester

DT1 1XJ
licensing@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence WPPL0407
PERSONAL LICENCE NUMBER AND ISSUING AUTHORITY OF PERSONAL LICENCE HELD BY DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR
WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES FOR THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

WPPA0417Licence No. Issued by Weymouth and Portland

ANNEXES

ANNEX 1 - MANDATORY CONDITIONS

The licence is granted subject to the Mandatory conditions for sale of alcohol as set out in the Licensing Act 2003 as amended by the Licensing 
Act 2003 (Mandatory Licensing Conditions) Order 2010 and Order 2014.

1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence -

(a)  At a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of the Premises Licence; or

(b) At a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a Personal Licence or his Personal Licence is suspended.

2. Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made, or authorised by a person who holds a Personal Licence.

3. (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible 
promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or substantially similar activities, 
carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises.

a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or encourage, individuals to -

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the 
cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to the public or to a group defined 
by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of 
alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can 
reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in 
any favourable manner.

e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that other person is unable to drink 
without assistance by reason of disability).

4. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers where it is reasonably available.

5. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in 
respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licences must ensure that the supply of alcohol at the 

Printed by LalPac on 27 Mar 2023 at 14:56 Page 3 of 10WPPL0407/55505Page 27



Licensing Team
Place Services
Dorset Council

County Hall
Dorchester

DT1 1XJ
licensing@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence WPPL0407
ANNEXES  continued ...

premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as 
may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of
birth and either:-

(a) a holographic mark or

(b) an ultraviolet feature.

6. The responsible person shall ensure that -

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or
supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the
following measures -

(i) beer or cider: ½ pint;

(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and

(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to customers on the premises; and 

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware 
that these measures are available.

Minimum Drinks Pricing

1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the premises for a price which is less than 
the permitted price.

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 -

(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979

(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula -

P = D + (DxV)

Where -

(i)P is the permitted price

(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of the sale or supply of 
the alcohol, and 

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were charged on the date of 
the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence -

(i) The holder of the premises licence

Printed by LalPac on 27 Mar 2023 at 14:56 Page 4 of 10WPPL0407/55505Page 28



Licensing Team
Place Services
Dorset Council

County Hall
Dorchester

DT1 1XJ
licensing@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence WPPL0407
ANNEXES  continued ...

(ii) The designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

(iii) The personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;

(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises certificate, any member or officer 
of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994.

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from the paragraph) not be a whole number of 
pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to 
the nearest penny.

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a day (“the first 
day”) would be different from the permitted price on the next day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or 
value added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take place 
before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

Exhibition of Films

1.Where a premises licence authorises the exhibition of films, the licence must include a condition requiring the admission of children to the 
exhibition of any film to be restricted in accordance with this section.

2.Where the film classification body is specified in the licence, unless subsection (3)(b) applies, admission of children must be restricted in 
accordance with any recommendation by that body.

3.Where

(a) The film classification body is not specified in the licence, or 

(b) The relevant licensing authority has notified the holder of the licence that this subsection applies to the film in question, admission of 
children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by that licensing authority.

4.In this section “children” means any person aged under 18; and

“film classification body” means the person or persons designated as the authority under Section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984(c39) 
(authority to determine suitability of video works for classification).

Conditions in respect of Door Supervision

1.Where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified times one or more individuals must be at the premises to carry out a security 
activity, each such individual must:

(a) be authorised to carry out that activity by a licence granted under the Private Security Industry Act 2001; or

(b) be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of the Act.

2.But nothing in subsection (1) requires such a condition to be imposed:

 (a) in respect of premises within paragraph 8(3)(a) of Schedule 2 to the Private Security Industry Act 2001 (c12) (premises with premises 
licences authorising plays or films); or

Printed by LalPac on 27 Mar 2023 at 14:56 Page 5 of 10WPPL0407/55505Page 29



Licensing Team
Place Services
Dorset Council

County Hall
Dorchester

DT1 1XJ
licensing@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence WPPL0407
ANNEXES  continued ...

(b) in respect of premises in relation to:

           (i)   any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b) or (c) of that Schedule (premises being used exclusively by club with club premises 
certificate, under a temporary event notice authorising plays or films or under a gaming licence), or

           (ii)  any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of that Schedule (occasions prescribed by regulations under that Act.

3.For the purposes of this section:

(a) “security activity” means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of that Schedule applies, and, which is licensable conduct for the 
purposes of that Act, (see Section 3(2) of that Act) and 

(b) paragraph 8(5) of that Schedule (interpretation of references to an occasion) applies as it applies in relation to paragraph 8 of that 
Schedule.

ANNEX 2 - CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE

(1) The PLH/DPS staff will ask for proof of age from any person appearing to be under the age of 25 who attempts to purchase alcohol at the 
premises.

(2) The PLH/DPS staff will ask for photographic identification in the form of either a passport, EU photographic driving licence or PASS 
accredited identification, from any person appearing to be under the age of 25 who attempts to purchase alcohol at the premises. 

(3) 2 (two) x SIA door staff FRIDAY from 2300 hrs (11pm) and to close and shall wear Hi Visibility jackets/covers when on duty at all times 
(colour of your choice)

(4) 2 (two) x SIA door staff SATURDAY from 2300 hrs (11pm) and a further 1 (one) x SIA door staff from 00.00hrs (MIDNIGHT) 

(5) The Daily Record Register will contain consecutively numbered pages, the full name and registration number of each person on duty, the 
employer of that person and the date and time he/she commenced & finished duty (verified by the individuals signature) and will be retained on 
the premises for a period of 12 months from the date of the last entry and made available to an authorised officer from the licensing authority or 
Police on request  

(6) The PLH/DPS/Duty Manager will ensure that an Incident Report Register is maintained on the premises to record incidents such as anti-
social behaviour, admissions refusals and ejections from the premises

(7) A CCTV system will be installed and recordings shall be made available to the Police on request. At all times the premises is open as least 1 
(one) member of staff will be on duty who shall be trained to operate the system in order to supply images 

(8) The CCTV system will contain the correct time and date stamp information

(9) The CCTV system will have sufficient storage retention capacity for a minimum of 28 days continuous footage

(10) A Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV) system will be operational at the premises at all times when licensable activities are being carried out 
and at any other times when members of the public are present on the premises    

(11) The PLH/DPS staff will ask for photographic identification in the form of either a passport, EU photographic driving licence of PASS 
accredited identification, from any person appearing to be under the age of 25 who attempts to purchase alcohol at the premises

ANNEX 3 - CONDITIONS ATTACHED AFTER A HEARING BY THE LICENSING AUTHORITY

(12) The PLH/DPS will operate to a written dispersal policy which ensures the safe and gradual dispersal of customers from the premises. 
The policy will be agreed with Dorset Police.  The PLH/DPS will ensure that staff receive training on the policy and a record of training 
shall be kept/made available to an authorised officer upon request.

(13)    Door staff will remain on duty until such time customers have dispersed.

Conditions added 4 May 2021:

Printed by LalPac on 27 Mar 2023 at 14:56 Page 6 of 10WPPL0407/55505Page 30



Licensing Team
Place Services
Dorset Council

County Hall
Dorchester

DT1 1XJ
licensing@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence WPPL0407
ANNEXES  continued ...

(14)    A log shall be kept detailing all refused sales of alcohol. The log should include the date and time of the refused sale, a description of the 
person refused, why they were refused (e.g. no ID, fake ID) and the name of the member of staff who refused the sale. The log shall be available 
for inspection at the premises by the police or an authorised officer of a Responsible Authority (Licensing Act 2003).

(15)    An additional CCTV camera will be mounted and trained towards Mitchell Street,
Weymouth.

(16)    A Noise Management Plan (NMP) shall be produced and submitted to Environmental Protection (EP) before the 25 May 2021. Thereafter 
the NMP may only be amended after consultation with EP. The NMP will contain, but not be limited to, the method for monitoring the noise 
levels, any noise levels that are agreed with EP, any steps taken to mitigate noise escape, and details of a complaints procedure to receive any 
noise complaints and solutions to those complaints. Any agreed version of the NMP will be submitted to the Licensing Team. 

(17)   Drinks, open bottles and glasses will not be taken from the premises except for takeaway sales between the hours of 11:00 and 20:00. Bar 
Customers will not be allowed to take drinks outside at any time. 

(18)   Empty bottles and glasses will be collected regularly and promptly. Glass and other sharp objects will be stored and disposed of using 
tamper proof receptacles. Receptacles will be secured and not accessible to the customers.

(19)   The PLH/DPS will prominently display notices which inform customers that open bottles or glasses may not be taken off the premises. 

(20)   The PLH/DPS will belong to a recognised trade body or Pub Watch Scheme where one exists, whose aims include the promotion of the 
licensing objectives. 

(21)  Adequate procedures must be implemented to ensure overcrowding does not occur in any part of the premises. 

(22)  The licence holder shall determine the occupant capacity of the premises on the basis of documented risk assessment(s):

(i) The risk assessment(s) must take into account all relevant factors including space, audience density, means of access and egress, toilet 
provision, load- bearing capacity of floors, ventilation, etc and must be reviewed regularly, and if circumstances change.

(ii) Where necessary separate occupancy levels must be set for different parts of the premises, and when necessary for different premises 
layouts and different types of events.

(iii) Measures must be put in place and documented to ensure that the capacity is not exceeded at any time.

(iv) All documentation pertaining to the proposed figure must be kept on the premises and must be available immediately on request to any 
authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or a constable. 

(v) The premises licence holder shall regularly review, update and amend any risk assessments particularly following any changes to the layout 
or operation of the venue. Such reviews shall be fully documented and form an integral part of the risk assessment.

(23)  There will be no external speakers.

(24)   All windows and external doors shall be kept closed after 23.00 except for the immediate access and egress of persons. This includes 
inward opening doors when SIA staff are available to manage access, egress and emergencies, and if SIA staff are not present, when occupant 
numbers do not exceed inward opening door limits for emergency escape, for each separate part of the premises.

(25)   Bottles will not be placed in any external receptacle after 23.00 hours and before 07.00 hours to minimise noise disturbance to 
neighbouring properties.

(26)   No waste collections or deliveries to the premises shall be arranged between 23:00 hours and 07:00 hours.

(27)   Clear and legible notices will be displayed at exits, requesting patrons to leave the premises quietly having regard to the needs of local 
residents, to meet the requirements of the dispersal policy.

(28)   Last entry and re-entry to the Premises will be 30 mins before closure. 

(29)   The PHL/DPS will adopt a ‘cooling down’ period in the Closet Bar area where music volume is reduced at 2am to background music only 
and the area closed at 3am. 

(30)   People under 18 years of age will be allowed on to the premises between 09.00hrs and 22.00hrs when accompanied by an adult.

Printed by LalPac on 27 Mar 2023 at 14:56 Page 7 of 10WPPL0407/55505Page 31



Licensing Team
Place Services
Dorset Council

County Hall
Dorchester

DT1 1XJ
licensing@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence WPPL0407
ANNEXES  continued ...

ANNEX 4 - PLAN

Please refer to plan submitted with varaitaion application 18th March 2021  
This plan is saved in Sharepoint under WPPL0407 PLAN 180321 
This plan should be viewed in relation to this premises licence. 

Business Licensing

Printed by LalPac on 27 Mar 2023 at 14:56 Page 8 of 10WPPL0407/55505Page 32



Licensing Team
Place Services
Dorset Council

County Hall
Dorchester

DT1 1XJ
licensing@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence Summary WPPL0407

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

CLOSET
38A MAIDEN STREET, WEYMOUTH, DORSET.

WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES

Not applicable

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE

an exhibition of a film-

an indoor sporting event-

a performance of live music-

any playing of recorded music-

a performance of dance-

entertainment of a similar description to that falling within a performance of live music, any playing of recorded music or a
performance of dance

-

provision of late night refreshment-

the supply of alcohol-

THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES

Activity (and Area if applicable) Description Time From Time To

B.  Exhibition of films (Indoors)
Sunday to Thursday 9:00am 5:00am
Friday & Saturday 9:00am 5:00am
Bank Holiday Weekends 9:00am 6:00am
New Years Eve 9:00am 6:00am

C.  Indoor sporting event
Sunday to Thursday 9:00am 5:00am
Friday & Saturday 9:00am 5:00am
Bank Holiday Weekends 9:00am 6:00am
New Years Eve 9:00am 6:00am

E.  Performance of live music (Indoors)
Sunday to Thursday 9:00am 5:00am
Friday & Saturday 9:00am 5:00am
Bank Holiday Weekends 9:00am 6:00am
New Years Eve 9:00am 6:00am

F.  Playing of recorded music (Indoors)
Sunday to Thursday 9:00am 4:00am
Friday & Saturday 9:00am 4:00am
Bank Holiday Weekends 9:00am 5:00am
New Years Eve 9:00am 5:00am

G.  Performance of dance (Indoors)
Sunday to Thursday 9:00am 5:00am
Friday & Saturday 9:00am 5:00am
Bank Holiday Weekends 9:00am 6:00am
New Years Eve 9:00am 6:00am

Premises Details

Printed by LalPac on 27 Mar 2023 at 14:56 Page 9 of 10WPPL0407/55505Page 33



Licensing Team
Place Services
Dorset Council

County Hall
Dorchester

DT1 1XJ
licensing@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence Summary WPPL0407
THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES  continued ...

Activity (and Area if applicable) Description Time From Time To

H.  Entertainment of a similar description to that falling within E, F, or G (Indoors)
Sunday to Thursday 9:00am 5:00am
Friday & Saturday 9:00am 5:00am
Bank Holiday Weekends 9:00am 6:00am
New Years Eve 9:00am 6:00am

I. Late night refreshment (Indoors)
Sunday to Thursday 9:00am 5:00am
Friday & Saturday 9:00am 5:00am
Bank Holiday Weekends 9:00am 6:00am
New Years Eve 9:00am 6:00am

J. Supply of alcohol for consumption ON and OFF the premises
Sunday to Thursday 9:00am 5:00am
Friday & Saturday 9:00am 5:00am
Bank Holiday Weekends 9:00am 6:00am
New Years Eve 9:00am 6:00am

THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES

Description Time From Time To

Sunday to Thursday 9:00am 5:00am
Friday & Saturday 9:00am 5:00am
Bank Holiday Weekends 9:00am 6:00am
New Years Eve 9:00am 6:00am

WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND / OR OFF SUPPLIES

- J. Supply of alcohol for consumption ON and OFF the premises

NAME, (REGISTERED) ADDRESS OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE

Jamie Paul CRAGE

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER, FOR EXAMPLE COMPANY NUMBER, CHARITY NUMBER (WHERE APPLICABLE)

NAME OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR OR MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES THE
SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Jamie Paul CRAGE

STATE WHETHER ACCESS TO THE PREMISES BY CHILDREN IS RESTRICTED OR PROHIBITED

No persons under the age of 16 permitted after 21:00 hrs when relevant adult entertainment is taking or due to take
place. 

Printed by LalPac on 27 Mar 2023 at 14:56 Page 10 of 10WPPL0407/55505Page 34


	1 Agenda
	2 Election of Chairman and Statement for the Procedure of the Meeting
	6 Temporary Event Notice- Closet, Weymouth
	Appendix 1- Temporary Event Notice
	Appendix 2- Objection Notice
	Appendix 3- Current Premises Licence


